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Post Office Box 3005 
2831 Talleyrand Avenue 

Jacksonville, Florida 32206-0005 
www.jaxport.com 

 

 June 12, 2023 

ADDENDUM NO. 02 

TO 
SPECIFICATIONS AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

FOR 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

LONG TERM LEASE OF JAXPORT PROPERTY – 79 ACRE PARCEL AT TMT 
JPA CONTRACT NO. RFP_23-08 

The item(s) of this Addendum shall modify and become a part of the contractual documents for this project as 
of this date. (Failure to acknowledge this addendum will be grounds for rejection of proposal.) 

ATTACHMENT TO CONTRACT SPECIFICATIONS 

Attachment No. 01 
Response to Questions. 

Attachment No. 02 
C-1139_TMT_(Berth 3 As-Built Drawings)

Attachment No. 03 
Tariff No. 2022-A 

Attachment No. 04 
Tariff Summary No. 2022-A 

Acknowledgment of the following addenda is hereby made: 

Addendum #2, Dated: ______________________  Initials ________________ 

Company __________________________________ 

NOTE:  THIS ADDENDUM SHALL BE ACKNOWLEDGED IN YOUR RFP SUBMISSION, FAILURE TO 
ACKNOWLEDGE ADDENDUM WILL BE GROUNDS FOR REJECTION OF PROPOSAL.  

PLEASE VISIT http://www.jaxport.com/procurement/active-solicitations OR CALL THE PROCUREMENT 
DEPARTMENT AT (904) 357-3017, PRIOR TO THE RFP SUBMISSION OPENING TO DETERMINE IF ANY 
ADDENDA HAVE BEEN RELEASED ON THIS CONTRACT. 

http://www.jaxport.com/procurement/active-solicitations
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Post Office Box 3005 

2831 Talleyrand Avenue 
Jacksonville, Florida 32206-0005 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

 
JPA CONTRACT NO. RFP_23-08 

LONG TERM LEASE OF JAXPORT PROPERTY – 79 ACRE PARCEL AT TMT 
RESPONSE TO QUESTIONS 

 
1. Is there any known repair work required on the wharf provided with the facility? 

 
ANSWER: There is no required repair to wharf #3 at this time. 

   
2. Is there any known repair work required with any of the buildings?  What is the age of the roof, 

HVAC, plumbing, electrical and health safety systems?  Are there any foundational or structural 
issues? 
 
ANSWER:   There are multiple buildings located on the property that were built, expanded, and 
modified over the years.  Each building is different in the systems and conditions.  Improvements 
have been periodically made by both JAXPORT and the previous tenant.  These recent 
improvements include items such as roof refurbishments and A/C unit replacements.  Further 
modifications/improvements will likely be required based on the proposed use. 
 
  Main Office Building 

a. Roof age: 1989 
b. HVAC age: 

a. Air Handler (1-4)  #1- 2012 #2, #3, #4 - 2023 
b. Condensing Unit None 
c. Chiller 2013 

c. Plumbing age:  1971 with some upgrades 
d. Electrical age: 1971 with some upgrades 
e. H&S Systems age: 1989 with upgrades to system 
f. Foundation or Structural Issues none  

                         
Assembly Building 

a. Roof age: 1989 
b. HVAC age: N/A 

a. Air Handler N/A 
b. Condensing Unit N/A 
c. Chiller N/A 

c. Plumbing age: 1971 with upgrades 
d. Electrical age: 1971 with upgrades 
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e. H&S Systems age:  1989 with upgrades to system 
f. Foundation or Structural Issues None 

 
Training and Wellness Center 

a. Roof age: 2014 
b. HVAC age: 3 Split unit systems, 2 rooftop units, all 8 to 10 years old 

a. Air Handler 
b. Condensing Unit  
c. Chiller N/A 

c. Plumbing age: 1980 
d. Electrical age:1980 
e. H&S Systems age:1980 with upgrades to system 
f. Foundation or Structural Issues None 

 
                        Transit Shed/Processing Building 

a. Roof age: 1969 -Metal roofing (Spray foamed w/elastomeric coating)  
b. HVAC age: N/A 

a. Air Handler N/A 
b. Condensing Unit N/A 
c. Chiller N/A 

c. Plumbing age: 1969 with Upgrades 
d. Electrical age: 1969 with Upgrades 
e. H&S Systems age: 2003 with upgrades 
f. Foundation or Structural Issues Yes- Southeast corner foundation 

settlement, Northside overhang /awning structural/roof issues 
 
                        Maintenance and Storage Facility 

a. Roof age: Unknown 
b. HVAC age: 2 Split system units for 2 offices- 5 to 7 years old 

a. Air Handler 
b. Condensing Unit 
c. Chiller 

c. Plumbing age: Unknown 
d. Electrical age: Unknown 
e. H&S Systems age: Unknown 
f. Foundation or Structural Issues Unknown 

 
                        Cafeteria/Office and Conference Building 

a. Roof age: 1987 Metal roof 
b. HVAC age: Approx. 8 split unit systems all 8 to 10 years old 

a. Air Handler 
b. Condensing Unit 
c. Chiller N/A 

c. Plumbing age: 1987 with Upgrades 
d. Electrical age: 1987 with Upgrades 
e. H&S Systems age: 1987 with Upgrades 
f. Foundation or Structural Issues None 
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                        Mat Building 

a. Roof age: 2007 
b. HVAC age: N/A 

a. Air Handler N/A 
b. Condensing Unit N/A 
c. Chiller N/A 

c. Plumbing age: 2007 
d. Electrical age: 2007 
e. H&S Systems age: 2007 
f. Foundation or Structural Issues None 

 
                        Car Wash Building      

a. Roof age: 2007 
b. HVAC age: N/A 

a. Air Handler 
b. Condensing Unit 
c. Chiller 

c. Plumbing age: 2007 
d. Electrical age: 2007 
e. H&S Systems age: N/A 
f. Foundation or Structural Issues None 

 
                        Security Building Porta-King 2005 

a. Roof age: 2021 
b. HVAC age: 2020- 2 rooftop units, 1 wall mounted unit 

a. Air Handler N/A 
b. Condensing Unit N/A 
c. Chiller N/A 

c. Plumbing age: 2005 
d. Electrical age: 2005 
e. H&S Systems age: N/A 
f. Foundation or Structural Issues None 

 
                        Lift Station age: 1988 with upgrades in 2021 to Control cabinet, sewage pumps,  
            Flowtube, and display indicator 
 
                        Fueling Station age: Upgraded tanks in 1993, Canopies replaced in 2018 

   
3. Is there one or more 100 gauge container crane with a 160 meter boom included in the lease?  If 

not what are the charges?  Can you provide a list of all port charges?  
 
 ANSWER:   No,  50 gauge cranes, subject to availability, are at berths 4,5,6,7 and 8 for use. 
 Cranes are included in the lease and there are no rails for cranes at Berth 3.   Rates for usage are 
 detailed in JAXPORT tariff schedule (attached).  (See Attachment No. 03) 
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4. The wharfage is stated as over 2,000’ of waterfront property; however, on the site plane it shows 
only 689’ berth within the property line; please advise? 
 
ANSWER:  There are six berths at the Talleyrand Marine Terminal. Three berths are available for 
cargo handling subject to vessel scheduling on a first come first served basis. 

   
5. As a lessee is my renter allowed to use their own operators and stevedores or must we go through 

the longshoreman’s local and or JAXPORT for the hiring?  
 
ANSWER:   The tenant may use their own operators and/or stevedores. However, certain operators 
and/or stevedores may have a contractual requirement to use a certain labor union. JAXPORT is 
not a part of the hiring process for the renter, nor does it have a requirement to utilize a certain 
labor union. 

   
6. Will we have the mobile loading  cranes to load the trucks and trains or must we provide our own?  

 
 ANSWER:   Mobile loading cranes are not included in this lease. Mobile cranes will be allowed.  
 However, the maximum bearing pressure for outriggers/cribbing is 400 psf.   
 

7.  Would we work directly with WATCO or through JAXPORT regarding our rail access? 
 
ANSWER:   Tenant would work directly with WATCO regarding rail access. 

   
8. Was an appraisal done on the property and may we review it to compare with my comps?  What 

CAP rate does JAXPORT use to determine lease rates 
 
ANSWER:   JAXPORT  does not have an appraisal on this property offered for lease. 

   
9. Will there be additional fees for dockage of Ocean Going Vessels above the lease rate?  

 
 ANSWER:   There are additional fees for docking of vessels. Please refer to JAXPORT tariff schedule. 
 See question #3.  (See Attachment No. 03) 
 

10.  Does JAXPORT have a certain minimum annual escalation?  
 
  ANSWER:   JAXPORT’s contracts include annual escalation negotiated at time of contract. 
 

11.  Does JAXPORT do the lease Base + CAM or at flat rate? 
 
 ANSWER:   JAXPORT contract terms vary. 

   
12. Is JAXPORT or the Lessee responsible for utilities? 

 
ANSWER:   Tenants are responsible for all utility charges. 

   
13.   What is JAXPORT’s insurance minimums required on the Lessee and ships making a port of call?  
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 ANSWER: Please refer to JAXPORT tariff schedule for information regarding insurance 
 requirements for vessels calling at JAXPORT.  (Please see question 3). Insurance requirements for 
 tenants are negotiated at time of contract. 
 

14. Does JAXPORT pay the brokerage fee on the buyer’s /lessees real estate broker?  
 
 ANSWER:   JAXPORT does not pay real estate brokerage fee, if any, associated with this property. 
 

15.  Could the lease include exclusive access to Berth No.3? 
 
ANSWER:   Exclusive access to Berth 3 is not included in this lease. 

   
16.  Could a fixed Ship Loading or Unloading Structure be built at Berth 3? 

 
ANSWER:   Ship’s gear may be used to load and unload cargo. Affixed structure may not be built. 

   
17.  Can we get a copy of the structural drawings of Berth 3? 

 
 ANSWER:   See Attachment No. 02 
 

18.  RFP states possible access to Berth’s 4 and 5: how is access determined and in what priority? 
 
ANSWER:   Requests for berthing of vessels is arranged through JAXPORT’s Vessel Scheduling 
Department on a first come first served basis. 

   
19. What permitting or approvals are needed for development (i.e. air, water, Corp of Engineers 

etc.)? 
 
ANSWER:   City of Jacksonville, Florida Department of Environmental Protection, U.S. Army Corps 
of Engineers, and St. Johns River Water Management District, JEA, and others as applicable. 

   
20. Are there any prohibited commodities or commodity types?  

 
 ANSWER:  The dry bulk commodity salt is not permitted to be handled at JAXPORT. All cargo types 
 must be approved by JAXPORT. 
   

21.  Does the lease holder have the right to enter into sub-leases? 
 
ANSWER:   Subleases of any JAXPORT property is subject to approval by JAXPORT. 

   
22. When is the deadline for a decision to work exclusively with one proponent? 

 
ANSWER:   JAXPORT has not set a definitive date for selecting one proposal. 

   
23. When in 2025 is the expected occupancy date for the lease?  

 
 ANSWER:   The property is expected to be available for lease in the summer of 2025. 
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24. Does the Port Authority get both the Tollage and the Wharfage from Vessels loaded or 

unloaded as part of the lease or does the lessee? 
 
ANSWER:   Please refer to JAXPORT’s Tariff schedule for information regarding charges for cargo 
loading and unloading. Please see question #3.  (See Attachment No. 03) 

   
25. What is the wharf length in linear feet on the property and the depth at wharf side in feet.   Does 

the rail-line come out at 7th Street or north of the Buckman Street Plant?  
 
 ANSWER:   The current berth depth  of Berth 3 is 34’. Berth 3 is approximately 684’ in length, and 
 width is approximately 61’.  The rail line comes from the nearby F&J yard, which is the Buckman 
 Street Interchange. 
 

26. RFP notes this facility can be dredged to 40 ft  
a. What is the cost to deepen the depth?  
b. How frequently would dredging be required to maintain 40 ft?   
c. Would dredging be the responsibility of the tenant or JAXPORT?  
d. Can the berth handle containers?  

 
 ANSWER:   Cost to deepen the berth to 40’ would be determined by bid process. Maintenance 
 dredging to maintain berth depth is the responsibility of JAXPORT. While the berth itself can 
 handle containers, container crane rails do not extend to Berth #3; therefore, container cranes 
 cannot reach this berth, and any loading/unloading of containers would have to be done with 
 ship’s gear or other equipment.  Please see answer to Question 3. 
 

27. Geotech information  
a. Does JAXPORT have geotechnical data on the relevant property?  

  
 ANSWER:   JAXPORT does not have current Geotech data on the property. 
   

28. Intermodal  
a. Is JAXPORT open to intermodal expansion on the property? 

 
 ANSWER:  JAXPORT is open to intermodal expansion on the property. 
    

29.  Operations 
a. Does JAXPORT have any preference or restrictions for products (ie, breakbulk, containers, bulk) to 
 be handled on the main dockside property? 
b. Are there any known restrictions for operations at the property on the west side of Talleyrand 

Ave?  
  
 ANSWER:   JAXPORT is open to cargo types including break bulk, autos or containers.   The 
 preference is for cargo types that enhance our diverse revenue base. We know of no 
 restrictions for use of the property on the west side of Talleyrand Avenue. The property is currently 
 zoned IH. 
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Issued 01/09/23 JAXPORT TARIFF #2022-A SUMMARY Effective 02/01/23

DOCKAGE, PER LINEAR FOOT, PER DAY (RULE 31-095)
VESSEL TYPE CHARGE IDLE
Vehicle Vessels $12.96 $6.48 
Container & Breakbulk Vessels 500 Feet or Less $6.82 $3.41 
Container & Breakbulk Vessels over 500 Feet to 625 Feet $10.02 $5.01 
Container & Breakbulk Vessels Over 625 Feet $12.51 $6.26 
Refrigerated Cargo Vessels $6.82 $3.41 
Barges - Tanker, Breakbulk, Lash $6.82 $3.41 
Barges – Container, Trailer, Vehicle $8.61 $4.31 
Tanker Vessels $14.72 $7.36 
Cruise Vessels $14.72 $7.36 
All Others, not otherwise stated $14.72 $7.36 
Any vessel exclusively conducting repairs $14.72 

EQUIPMENT RENTAL (RULE 31-140)
HOURLY RATES CHARGE OVERTIME
Container Crane Standby Per Hour $271.70 $392.66 
Rubber Tired Gantry Crane Per Hour $250.50 N/A
Crane Over Height Attachment - Per Vessel Use $312.42 N/A
Container Crane Per Hour $1,018.10 $1,096.41 
Water Truck (without water) Per Hour $70.38 $105.55 
Sweeper $148.82 $221.00 
Light Cart/Generator (Per Day) $140.00 N/A

TERMINAL USE PER 2,000 POUND TON (RULE 31-390)
All cargo except Heavy Lift $0.72 
Heavy Lift (as defined in rule 31-145) $3.12 

WHARFAGE PER SHORT TON (RULE 31-455)
Automobiles, new manufactured lots, per unit $6.30 
Automobiles, other than new, per unit $10.91 
Breakbulk Cargo (vessels 500 linear feet or less) not otherwise stated, 
except heavy lift (as defined in rule 31-145) $3.91 
Breakbulk Cargo (vessels over 500 linear feet) not otherwise stated, except 
heavy lift (as defined in rule 31-145) $5.48 
Bulk Cargo, dry granular cargo $3.12 
Bulk Cargo, liquid (discharged directly into pipelines) $2.34 
Bulk Cargo, not otherwise stated $3.12 
Container Cargo (vessels 500 linear feet or less) $3.82 
Container Cargo (vessels over 500 linear feet) $5.48 
Empty containers, each $23.50 
Heavy Lift (as defined in rule 31-145) $9.41 
Over 100,000 pounds but less than 300,000 pounds
Heavy Lift (as defined in rule 31-145) $11.66 
Over 300,000 pounds, plus JPA project engineering cost if applicable
Livestock, per head $4.67 
Other mobile units (wheeled), or accessories, except heavy lift cargo $10.67 
Passengers embarking and/or disembarking, or on board vessel at arrival, 
per passenger $11.53 

DREDGING DISPOSAL FEE (RULE 31-110)
City of Jacksonville N/A
Governmental, per cubic yard $18.88 
Commercial / All Others, per cubic yard $25.15 

(DMMA) MATERIAL REMOVAL (RULE 31-107)

www.jaxport.com Jacksonville Port Authority 1-800-874-8050
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Material to be placed on Public Property, per cubic yard $0.75 
Material to be placed on Private Property, per cubic yard $2.00 

BUNKERING (RULE 31-026)
Permit application, Initial application $3,000.00 
Annual fee, each year $2,500.00 
Flow Rate Fee, per barrel (42 gallon) $0.15 
Flow Rate Fee, (per gallon) $0.36 
Flow Rate Fee, (per cubic meter) $0.543 

CBP - REIMBURSABLE SERVICES PROGRAM (RULE 31-067)
After hour services, for first hour $220.00 
services, for each additional 15-minute increment $55.00 
Cancelation fee $55.00 

WHARFAGE PER SHORT TON (RULE 31-455)
WATERCRAFT CHARGE
Not exceeding 16' in length, per boat $31.31 
Over 16' but not over 24' in length, per boat $39.16 
Over 24' but not over 28' in length, per boat $47.00 
Over 28' but not over 35' in length, per boat $62.67 
Over 35' but not over 60’ in length, per boat $117.49 
Over 60’ in length, per linear foot $3.91 

ELECTRIC USE CHARGE (RULE 31-115)
Electric charge for non-metered tenants, per month $192.21 

OVERFLOW LAND RENTAL (RULE 31-255)
PER CALENDAR 

MONTH, PER ACRE
Improved Land (Paved) $4,000.00 
Semi-Improved Land (Stone) $3,000.00 
Unimproved Land $2,500.00 

CRUISE TERMINAL PARKING (RULE 31-265)
Per Vehicle, Per Day $17.00 
Non-Cruise Passenger Vehicle in Short Term Parking, Per Day $3.00 
Recreational Vehicles, or vehicles occupying two parking spaces, per
vehicle, per day $34.00 

PENALTY CHARGES (RULE 31-270)
Failure to vacate berth, per hour $14,419.57 
Failure to provide billing information, per day, per vessel $25.00 

JAXPORT CRUISE TERMINAL PORT FEES (RULE 31-280)
All Commercial Traffic $10.00 
Motor Coach / Full-Size Busses (26 or more passengers) $50.00 
Franchised Taxi Company $3.00 
Transportation Networking Companies $3.00 

REEFER PLUG CHARGE (RULE 31-120)
Electric use charge for reefer plugs, per plug, per day $62.67 

SECURITY FEES (RULE 31-325)
Vessels with 200 or more containers, loaded to or discharged from vessel, 
empty or loaded, per container: $7.77 

www.jaxport.com Jacksonville Port Authority 1-800-874-8050
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All other vessels (including vessels loading or discharging less than 200 
containers, loaded or empty) per linear foot based on vessel LOA (length 
overall): $3.91 

WATER (RULE 31-450)
Provided to vessel, per short ton $4.70 

WAREHOUSE/OFFICE SPACE RENTAL (RULE 31-455)
Overflow/Temporary warehouse space, per square foot, per year, if 
available $12.51 
Overflow/Temporary office space, per square foot, per year, if available $24.04 
Minimum charge per 30 days or fraction thereof: $783.14 

HARBOR ADMINISTRATION FEE (RULE 31-180)
Vessel equal to or less than 200 linear feet - per call $145.67 
Vessel over 200 linear feet - per call $291.34 

SECURITY SERVICES (RULE 31-340) OVERTIME
HOURLY RATES - Plus an additional thirty percent (30%) admin fee CHARGE RATE
Contract Security Officer (Per Hour) $28.56 $43.41 
Contract Security Officer with Vehicle (Per Hour) $39.98 $54.85 
Public Safety Compliance Officer with Vehicle (Per Hour) $57.12 $74.26 
Law Enforcement Officer (Per Hour) $66.26 $89.12 
PUBLIC SAFETY EQUIPMENT
Light Cart/Generator (Per Day) $140.00 
Mobile Command Vehicle (Per Hour) $114.26 
Mobile Security Booth & Generator (Per Day) $225.00 
Security/Safety Vessel with Operator (Per Hour) $142.81 
Variable Message Sign (Per Day) $225.00 

POINT OF REST (RULE 31-285)
Day 1 – Day 5: (per acre/per day) $380.00 

INTERMODAL CONTAINER TRANSFER FACILITY (RULE 31-210)
CONTAINER CHARGES
Free Time (96 hours excluding SUNDAYS) No Charge
Day 5 - 15 
20' (per day per container) $22.00 
40' (per day per container) $44.00 
45' (per day per container) $50.00 
Beyond Day 15
20' (per day per container) $44.00 
40' (per day per container) $88.00 
45' (per day per container) $100.00 
DEMURRAGE (per 24 hour period) $25.88 
LIFT CHARGES
The first lift of a container to, or from, the railcar $63.96 
Supplemental Lifts, Billed to Line requesting lift by TERMINAL OPERATOR  
- (each lift)    $72.45 
Miscellaneous or Additional Container Handling  (per container)                                                   $72.45 
INSPECTION $129.38 
PLACARDING - (per placard) $34.16 
SEALS - (per seal) $25.88 

TWIC ESCORTS (RULE 31-415)
TWIC Escort Service for Non TWIC Holders

www.jaxport.com Jacksonville Port Authority 1-800-874-8050
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Private owned registered vehicle $75.00 
Commercial Carriers $125.00 
Escort after 6:00 p.m. until 7:00 a.m., After hours, weekends, holidays $250.00 
Project / Contract / Vendor     Escorts
One escort to meet required ratio to maintain side by side escort 
Pay on Arrival –
Mon.-Fri.  7:00 a.m. until 6:00 p.m. Subject to two hours minimum   $125.00
After 6:00 p.m. until 7:00 a.m.  weekends, holidays Subject to two hours min                                                 $125.00
Each additional two-hour block $125.00
High Visibility Personal Protective Vest Required per Tariff 31-275 $10.00

CLEANING FACILITIES (RULE 31-045)
Cost plus 30%
Minimum charge $250.00 

CYBER SECURITY INCIDENT DISCLOSURE (RULE 31-069)
Failure to disclose (per day penalty) $1,000.00
Maximum charge $50,000.00

FUEL SURCHARGE (RULE 31-167)
DYED DIESEL
Only applies if price per gallon exceeds $3.45

SWEEPING TENANT FACILITIES (RULE 31-370)
Regular time (per hour) $148.82
Overtime (per hour) $221.00 

www.jaxport.com Jacksonville Port Authority 1-800-874-8050
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